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Interviewer, Silvio Bosi, Eugene Bosi 


Interviewer:
All right, let me just move it up here.  Today is May 23, 1979.  This is Rayann Cramer and Peggy Jemison for Metropolitan Interfaith Association.  This is on a grant from the Tennessee Committee for the Humanities.  And we are on the Vollintine-Evergreen Neighborhood and Public Policy Project.  Today we are interviewing a gentleman who has had a business and who has lived in the Vollentine-Evergreen neighborhood.
Silvio Bosi:
All my life.

Interviewer:
All your life?

Silvio Bosi:
All my life.

Silvio Bosi:
And your name?

Silvio Bosi:
Silvio Joseph Bosi.

Interviewer:
How do you spell that?

Silvio Bosi:
S-i-l-v-i-o, Joseph, J-o-s-e-p-h B-o-s-i.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  And you say you were born about –

Silvio Bosi:
I was born at Lewis and Vollentine in 1914.  My mother had a store, a small store there and the –

[00:01:00]
Interviewer:
Grocery store?

Silvio Bosi:
A grocery store – and the flood would come up on Vollentine and, you know, down at – where the school is, down on Vollentine school – I mean, what's that?  Northside?  Northside School.  And we'd have to move.  And we moved up on State Street.  


Well, we stayed there about a year, a month or two and the water went down, we'd move back to Lewis.  And so one day my daddy’s – my mother's brother came by.  He was a politician in south Memphis; he had a store down there.  Is that –

Interviewer:
He was a politician?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, well he wasn't – he was just in with – he was more with Mr. Crump, you know, at that time.  And he told my mother to buy a piece of property and put a store up on the hill.  Well, she bought – she built the store.  They borrowed $500.00 from her brother.  And she started there in 19 – about 1902.

[00:02:00]


And she stayed there till 1928.  And my brother was working at the bank.  That's my brother Mike.  He's not in this picture.

Interviewer:
What was your mother's full name?

Silvio Bosi:
Mary Lucchesi Bosi.

Interviewer:
And she came from?

Silvio Bosi:
From Lucca, Italy.  And –

Interviewer:
And your father's full name?

Silvio Bosi:
Anthony Bosi.  Anthony A. Bosi.  A is – I forget now.  But when they came over from the old country, my mother, I mean, my uncle Nordi owned grand Central Station, where the Grand Central Station was, well they had a boarding house.  That's where my daddy met my mother.  
Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
And I'll just tell you how our family really got started.  And you can – you can do it as you want to.

Interviewer:
That's what we want to hear.

Silvio Bosi:
And so when –

[00:03:00]


– my mother was in love with a fellow in Chicago.  He had moved to Chicago and while he was gone – he must have went to war or something – she fell in love with my daddy and they got married.  And then they moved out here on – going back to Vollentine now – and when the water would come up like I told you and move back and forth and my aunt or uncle let them have the money and she built this store right here.  She stayed there until 1928.

Interviewer:
Now where was that store?

Silvio Bosi:
That's Olympic and Vollentine.  Right – it's about – oh, it's right there Northside school, right on the corner, still there.

Interviewer:
And it didn't flood?

Silvio Bosi:
No, and after – we didn't have to move – it'd come on up to the doors and all that, but it never – we didn't have to get out anymore.  And we stayed there till 1928 and I went – my brother was working.  He didn't want to, didn't like the grocery business, went to work for Stratton Water.  My mother got sick and my daddy was working for Loy Wise.

[00:04:00]


– we couldn't make it; it just got so bad in '30.  So he went out to work for Loy Wise and my mother kept the grocery store going.

Interviewer:
But what did your father do?

Silvio Bosi:
He was a butcher.  My mother butchered and run the grocery store and took care of it and everything.  And so we went back and my mother used to go to sleep out on the front – in the front of the building, wait for customers to come in the store at night.  You stay on till 10:00, 11:00.  

And when – but being right at the front door of the grocery store, we have to come up about three steps and the colored people would come by and say, "Mrs. Bosi, it's time for you to go to bed."  And she'd be asleep with the store wide open and wouldn't nobody bother her.  So that went on and we used to have an old fellow by the name of Tachi – colored fellow.  We used to have –

Interviewer:
How do you spell that?

Silvio Bosi:
I really don't know, we just called him Tachi.  I was a young boy and I really don't –

Interviewer:
Tachi?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.  That's what they called him.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Silvio Bosi:
And he would stay with my mother at night and he would leave about 10:00 and then she would – maybe –

[00:05:00]


– my mother would stay a little bit longer.  Maybe he'd go home at 8:00 or 9:00 or something like that.  And so when – about, oh one Saturday night dong that one year, three colored fellows – two colored fellows came in and there was a split in the counter here and my mother had this – not, it was right back here where they had the cash register and she always had her apron, you know, she always had her apron on and she kept the money in her pocket – liked to see it.  

And so this colored fellow grabbed her and when she grabbed – when she grabbed them, she hollered.  And this colored fellow that was there with her picked up a chair, said, "Don't you hit that – hurt that white woman."  Says, "I'll hit you with this chair."  So in the meantime my daddy heard him and I was asleep with him and we had the bedrooms on this side.  


Instead of my daddy coming out this away, he came all the way around the back of the bedroom and came in through the butcher shop just like you see it.  And the fellow was standing up in the door –
[00:06:00]


– when he did, he shot behind the counter like that, my daddy's gun.  And the bullet came back and hit the back wall and that's the only time that we were held up in that store all the years my mother was there.  But they – I think they caught them; they were from Chicago at that time.  They wasn't local.

Interviewer:
What about this store?  Have you had holdups here?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, I'll get to that in a few minutes.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Silvio Bosi:
And so my mother sold to a Jewish fellow.  And –

Interviewer:
Who did she sell to?

Silvio Bosi:
Goldstein.  Mr. Goldstein.  Think his name was Goldstein back in '28.  So we moved over on Pierce Street and my sister got sick.  That's the little baby – I was – that was before we moved over here.  We – the baby – we had already brought the baby with us.  My sister died and _____ Jack Adamo – y'all know Jack Adamo?

[00:07:00]


The rose man?

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Adamo the rose man?  Yeah ,we have – we have met him but we –

Silvio Bosi:
Now that – now that's his son.  My mother raised him.

Interviewer:
That's his son?  Is that so?

Silvio Bosi:
She wanted him – my sister told my mother she wanted to help me raise him.  So Jack didn't get married until he was 16 years old and then we left.  
Interviewer:
And you told us a story earlier about you as a little boy being handicapped?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah well –

Eugene Bosi:
Margene was the Queen of the parade.

Silvio Bosi:
When I got up of age around eight or nine or ten years old, we used to have the Oates – the colored family Oates and the Walkers – used to be undertakers.  One lived up on the hill and they lived down the way.  And I used to play marbles with them.  Shoot marbles with them and, you know, I didn't have anybody else that I – we were just like just –

Interviewer:
Friends?

Silvio Bosi:
Just friends, but I mean really friends.  And so my mother, she couldn't buy me any skates or –

[00:08:00]


– buy, she wouldn't let me have no bicycles or skates or anything so the Oates were an undertaker and they were kind of wealthy.  The Oates and the Walkers were wealthy, they had a little money.  And so one of the boys that comes in here now – he comes in here right now – the oldest boy comes in here now and he bought me a pair of skates for Christmas.
Interviewer:
Very nice.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.  And in the meantime that's what I got – on the skates, after I wore the skates out, one of the skates I bought – I made me a scooter and that's when I cut my finger.  This is, yeah, this is funny but that's the way it happened.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Silvio Bosi:
So, but him, when I was – I wanted to go play marbles and my mother like I say that my daddy was working, my brother didn't want no grocery business.  She would tie me behind the counter.  There was a little rod that went down and hold up this case on the counter.  And Miss LaCroix across the street was wealthy, she owned Fine Blake Packing, it wasn't called Fine Blake, it was called –

[00:09:00]


– Jake LaCroix's Packing Company.  And you know just where they – he killed cattle and sold cattle, what he did, or raised them out there.  So it's – she called the police and told them I was mistreat – they were mistreating the children over there.
Interviewer:
Thought you were abused?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, abused, yeah, so she said she wanted to adopt me and my mother said, 'You ain't gonna adopt that boy."  Says, "I can raise all my children.  I have seven."

Interviewer:
Seven?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, said, "I can raise my own children."  And said, "You're not gonna get him."  So that went on.  But I used to run off a lot.  I'd go down and play marbles, I'd do the sand, I'd go with the colored boy on the wagon haul – delivering groceries.  So one day we was up there right at the Klondike School, used to be up there n Olympic.  You know – I don't know if you remember – we went into this house on the corner and when the boy went in to deliver the groceries, I –

[00:10:00]


– get the horse and started getting the horse, turn him around.  I run over a colored fellow and tore his britches off.  I didn't – when I got there, took the horse – they got the horse stopped, I got out and ran, and didn't go home till late.  I knew I was gonna get a whipping so –
Interviewer:
You gonna let things cool down?

Silvio Bosi:
I let it cool down and my daddy got cooled down, I knew I was gonna get it.  So he come down here, my daddy had to buy him some more clothes and give him a little money to keep from, you know, getting sued and all that, because we didn't have – we didn't know what sue was at that time.  


So that was that, but back –

Eugene Bosi:
Just one?

Silvio Bosi:
I left – when I went to CBC, I was going to CBC, my mother got – scraped up enough money to send after I graduated from grade school I went to CBC and I went to work for Clarence Saunders.  

Interviewer:
Who?

Silvio Bosi:
Clarence Saunders.

Interviewer:
Clarence Saunders?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, I first went to work with, yeah, Clarence Saunders first.  And I worked with him at Willington and Union.

[00:11:00]

Interviewer:
Personally – he was in the store personally at that time?

Silvio Bosi:
No, he had the one over on – at – right next to Breeze and had the one at Wellington and union and I don't think he had the first store going – he didn't have his third store going at that time.  But I left there and I went to work for Kroger and I worked for Kroger at Oxen and Jackson.  Right there on the corner of Jackson.  Jackson went this way and Oxen went that way and with all and another state park and they went on around it.

And I stayed there for three years and I went to work for Advantage for Ralph Abilio over here on Vollentine.  I was away from there.  I went over there and stayed there 11 ½ years.

Interviewer:
Now about what years were those?

Interviewer:
That was in 1930 I went down there.  I quit – no, '31 it was because I went two years to CBC.  Over here on Washington, and my mother couldn't afford – she wanted me to go back but they got so bad –
[00:12:00]


– that I told mama, "I'm not going to go back.  $150.00 mean a whole lot of money to us so I'll just go to work."  And she cried, she didn't want me to go, I can see her now.  And so I quit and went to work for them and she says, "Oh won't you go on back to school?"  But I couldn't get along with one of the brothers.  I didn't want to say – him and I couldn't see.  So I said, "I'm gonna go to work.  I'm gonna help out at home."
Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
So that's when they moved out on Snowden, but to raise little Jack.

Interviewer:
Where?

Silvio Bosi:
On Snowden, 1952 Snowden.

Interviewer:
1952 Snowden?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, they moved out there.  My brother-in-law lost his job, my daddy lost his job, and my sister was pregnant, she liked to died from baby birth, because she just had – she had one daughter, Anita, she's still living.
[00:13:00]


And we had all that and my mother had some money but it all went out in coal.  And 14 years old, her money was gone because they just took everything they could get from her.  And my daddy stayed with that job a long time.

Interviewer:
_____?

Silvio Bosi:
And so in 19 – let's see, 1937 I met Mr. Lott over here to work – over here at –

Interviewer:
Mr. Lott?  L-o-t-t?

Silvio Bosi:
Jimmy Lott.  L-o-t-t.  Over here on Marin and Eberline and I knew he had made a lot of money in the lumber business and I said, "Jimmy, how about putting me in business?  I want to get going.  I'm tired of working for somebody.  My kinfolks ain't gonna do nothing for me, I can see that now."  Said, "I want somebody put me in business."


So I left – I waited and went on for two or three months and so one night I went up here to church to Confession.  And I came over her and the check in stand was right up in that corner up there.
[00:14:00]

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
And I walked in the door and I said, "Mack?"  Name of McGonagall – I can't think of – Mack – Mack – McGonagall his last name, I just called him Mack.

Interviewer:
I wonder how you spell that.
Silvio Bosi:
M-c-l-o-u-something like – like Wilson and McGonagall.

Interviewer:
Right.

Silvio Bosi:
McGonagall, yeah, I don't know how you'd –yeah.
Interviewer:
It wouldn't be Mondanico?
Silvio Bosi:
No, it's – he owned this store at that time.  So I –

Interviewer:
Do you know how long this store had been there?

Silvio Bosi:
This store here?

Interviewer:
Um-hum., that he owned it?

Silvio Bosi:
Oh he'd – it had been here all the years we were over here, practically all the years before this neighborhood started to – it was here back in 19 – I'll say it was in the '20s.

Interviewer:
1927, around there _____.

Silvio Bosi:
It was here then, yeah, because –

[00:15:00]


– this neighborhood started coming out, see?
Interviewer:
But the store was here before the neighborhood?  Okay.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, yeah.  And so I came over here and I said, "Mack, I want to – I got a fellow gonna buy this grocery store.  Don't sell it."  I said, "I want to get in the business.”  This was in 1942.

Interviewer:
'42?

Silvio Bosi:
Um-hum.  So I went back to the store and _____ went back and he came out the front door and I said, "Jimmy, come here."  I said, "I got a grocery store."  So he came up her and he bought that grocery store that Sunday morning.  He bought that store that Sunday morning.
Interviewer:
How much did he pay for it?

Silvio Bosi:
$5,900.00.

Interviewer:
$5,900.00?  And it was stocked?  It had an inventory and it –

Silvio Bosi:
And I – well I, but I had a fellow by the name of Mr. Cuneo was gonna buy it from me.  I'm going back to tell you some of my business.  But I don't mind, I'm happy over it, I am.  And –
[00:16:00]


– he was gonna put me in business and my mother said, "no, I'm not gonna let you buy it because they'll say you stole the money from – from the kinfolks."

Interviewer:
Oh, you were related to Mr. Cuneo?

Silvio Bosi:
No, I was related to the Bilios and the Vangelistics, that's who I used to work for.  

Interviewer:
Oh, I see.

Silvio Bosi:
And she said, "No, they'll say you got money the wrong way."  So I couldn't buy it and –

Interviewer:
Oh, I see, so you got Mr. Lott?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, so Mr. Lott put me into it.  So I – over here for three years from 1942 to '45 and I lost my lease and I didn't – I was supposed to been partners, and when I paid it out, the $5,900.00 but I never got part of it.  I had to go to the Army.  So I was gone six months.  


And when I came back in 1945, after –
[00:17:00]


– I left I went to work – I was supposed to leave on Easter Sunday.  I – I got a letter not to report and so I went to work for the railroad.  Monty Robinson and all, that's where we all went to the railroad to work on the railroad doing – bringing men back.  And in '45 – this, in '45 I told Mr. Lott that the only way I would come back with him is go in partners and have a bookkeeper keep the books.  I said that's the only way I would come back.
Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
Well I was doing about $8,000.00 a week business and it went down to $2,900.00 after I left – the six months I was gone.  So they moved across the street – they lost the lease in '45 and moved across the street.

Interviewer:
Here on Evergreen?

Silvio Bosi:
Right on about right there next to Puyallup.

Interviewer:
All right.

Silvio Bosi:
And I stayed there from '42 and in 1950 he came –

[00:18:00]


– to me to buy him out.  He wanted to buy a sawmill down in Mississippi.  So I went to 9th and 90 uptown to try to borrow money and they said no, they wouldn't give me the money on account of I can sell the stock out overnight and they wouldn't let me have it.  

So I went to Mose Konoski and Lee Konoski up on the pawn shop up on Main Street.  They let me have the money to buy my home on Garland.  And so I had – he said he had bought a home from property out on good that he had bought a piece of property over here on Poplar.  


I knew he had because he wouldn't have had it is he hadn't.  So I came back and I walked in the front door over there and Rena Cavelli and Joe Cavelli was on the other side of the checking stand.  And in Italian, this fellow said, " Baccalà, where you been?"  I said, "I have been trying to borrow $15,000.00 to buy Mr. Lott out."
[00:19:00]


He says, "How soon do you have to have it?"  I said, "I have to have it –" this was at 12:00.  He says, "How soon do you have to have it?"  I said, "I need it before 3:30 because he gotta meet a guy down Mississippi to buy it."  He said, "You get on the telephone, tell Mr. Lott that you'll have the money there and my lawyer will meet him at your lawyer's office, whatever office you want and I'll have the money there for you."  So at 3:30 I had this grocery store all my own.  

Interviewer:
What a friend.  Now you had known them before?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, I – my mother – well, I tell you, my mother knew him.  My mother borrowed some money from him years ago.

Interviewer:
I see.

Silvio Bosi:
And he was wild about my mother.

Interviewer:
Yeah?

Silvio Bosi:
He loved – my mother was loved by everybody, yeah.

Interviewer:
Ah, that's nice.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah she was, she was loved by everybody.  And –

Interviewer:
So you got your store?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, that's how I been here since.
Interviewer:
And so then that was '50?

Silvio Bosi:
That was '50 and I bought it and I've had it since '50 all by myself, but I been here on the corner since 1940 –

[00:20:00]


– '41.

Interviewer:
Well tell us what it was – what – did you still deliver groceries in '50?

Silvio Bosi:
I delivered groceries up to, let's see, from '42 to 1962 I delivered,

Eugene Bosi:
Say '60?

Silvio Bosi:
'62 and '63 it was.  I had delivery boys on bicycles and I bought trucks after that.  I used to have five boys running all the time.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
I used to have two trucks going all the time.  But it got so bad from stealing that I had to – my wife come to me one day and says, 'If you don't cut out delivery, I'm gonna sell the grocery store and divorce you."  I know she wasn't gonna divorce me, but she scared me anyway and I wanted to get away from it anyway.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  
Silvio Bosi:
And so in a way we were losing a lot of money because we had to check out up front, the boys would throw a carton of cigarettes in every time they go to order something with –

[00:21:00]


– missing and all that and so we stopped and the business picked up.  It actually – it really just kept growing greater and greater every year, every year it's gotten better.  It's amazing that what I'm doing here y’all would be surprised  after this it's – sometimes I got to pinch myself to see if I'm what's – he's helped me a lot, my boy's helped me a lot.
Interviewer:
How long has he been here with you?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, he been here all his life, he's been working.  All of them worked, I had all of them –

Interviewer:
Did you chain them to the candy thing?

Silvio Bosi:
No, I had – what I used to do, I used to whip them, though when they didn't show up.  But they all worked.  I had the oldest boy worked with me and his wife didn't – got mad and his wife didn't want him to stay at it and the other one worked and his wife said it was too many hours and he got out.  


He's the only one who went in with me, so he's going to get the gravy.  But getting back to the deliveries, so I stopped and we went into –
[00:22:00]


– making hams and then I found our biggest main drawing card is – well back in 1940, I'm gonna go back to that – in 1940 my daddy was butchering for me and he told me, "Son, there's one thing I'm gonna tell you before I go."  He had a heart attack in June and he died in September.  "If I go soon, don't never stop hamming good meat.  Can't nobody break your backbone on good meat."  


And that's what I've done.  I've had the best meat in the city of Memphis and we bake the best hams in the city of Memphis.
Interviewer:
Where do you get your meat?

Silvio Bosi:
We buy – we get – well now, we used to get it from Morrell and only we get it out of St. Louis or out of our warehouse over in Little Rock.  It's all blocked down, it's all choice stuff and there's no grade – you don't have no other kind of grades of meat.  


We have nothing but – if they don't want it.  If it's five cents a pound, we can't help it.  They know you can take it home and eat it.  That's the main thing.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  

[00:23:00]


And you say the bulk of your business now is in this baked ham, doing it for people to take out?
Silvio Bosi:
Well they – we do a little catering, a little bit, a very small, they're friends.  We don't go out in the big way.  We fix trays.
Interviewer:
Of cold meat?

Silvio Bosi:
Cold meats.  We fix trays for weddings and funerals and parties and just anything you want.  Just like we have one lady coming after now, don't know if y'all saw one out there.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
Well we do that.  And –

Interviewer:
Are most of your customers from this neighborhood?

Silvio Bosi:
_____ yes and we have some – we have people come from Mrs. Getz lives up right on – Brother Barker, we'd stay up here in the _____ he moved out to –

Eugene Bosi:
Forest Hill?

Silvio Bosi:
Forest Hill.  He comes back in.

Eugene Bosi:
Lot of them from Raleigh.

Silvio Bosi:
We got a lot of them from Raleigh come in and I got some from Germantown come in.  They come back; they know they can get meat that they can eat.  Now I'm gonna be – I'm offered that they can eat, they tell me that all the time and they come all over town, buy them a baked ham.  And –
Interviewer:
How much is the baked –

[00:24:00]


– ham?
Silvio Bosi:
$3.79 a pound.  And we started out – we started out $1.06 – $1.45 a pound, it went to $1.89, it went to $2.45, $2.75, $3.50 and $3.79 and that's cheap.

Eugene Bosi:
The ham sandwich started at a quarter, now it's $0.70.

Silvio Bosi:
Started at a quarter, now it's $0.70 and that –

Interviewer:
Ham sandwich for $0.70?  That's sounds wonderful.

Silvio Bosi:
That's pretty cheap.

Interviewer:
We should have had lunch here.

Silvio Bosi:
Well, take you one before you leave and take it with you.  

Interviewer:
Oh, thank you.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
We'll come and have lunch with you.

Silvio Bosi:
No, we'll –

Interviewer:
Because we're going to be in the neighborhood a lot.

Silvio Bosi:
We'll let you take – anything else y’all want to know about the store?  I know I've told you my history, now I'm glad to tell you about it.

Interviewer:
Well tell us a little bit about the observations in the neighborhood.  What you've seen happen in the neighborhood.

Silvio Bosi:
All right, the neighborhood, I –the only thing – I don't see anything that's happened too much but the race.  There's race.  And some of them moved for it and some moved because they don't want to be and some stay with it.

[0:25:00]


Like, a lot of people are – it’s like me here.  I have the colored trades with me; I have one of the best in the city of Memphis.  I mean, the best.  They think that – when they in trouble they come to me.  They ask me if they need $5.00, they get it.  If they – if I know – if I tell them, “Now, I’m gonna give you this money, if you can’t pay it back, let me know, if you gonna pay it back let me know when.”

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Silvio Bosi:
That’s what I do.  And they’ll come to me and ask me for a ticket, I’ll hold a ticket for them.  But I get stung, I don’t – all of it ain’t easy.  In other words it’s not an easy life, it’s hard.  That’s the reason why I’m not a rich man today, I guess, because I’ve – I got some boxes up there full of them, I ain’t gonna lie about it.  Some boxes up there full of tickets.


But I’ve enjoyed it.  I haven’t suffered.  I’ve ate and I can’t see people go without something –

[0:26:00]


– to eat.  That’s something, I can’t do it.  I belong to a church _____ called the Saint Vincent de Paul.  You heard of it?

Interviewer:
Yeah, tell me about that.

Silvio Bosi:
Well, that’s an organization we have, somebody – the church will call me and we have a _____ over here needs something to eat.  They don’t have any food.  They have children.  And – 

Interviewer:
Now, you’re a member of the Little Flower?

Silvio Bosi:
Little Flower.  Well, I’m – now I’m in St. James but I’ve been in this parish all my life.  Where I go now is the offspring of the Monsignor Whitfield built out on Leroy.

Interviewer:
Did he build another one in _____?

Silvio Bosi:
He built the Madonna, Four Cliffs, he built St. James out on Leroy and that’s what he built.  Monsignor Whitfield did all that.

Interviewer:
Did you know him personally?

Silvio Bosi:
I was his pallbearer.

Interviewer:
Were you really?

Silvio Bosi:
And I was raised under him.  I tell you something else, you know, what you want to put in there.  Back in 1920s –
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– my mother had Dolly and Mike and Georgina going to Guthrie school.  At that time it was – St. Brigid was a little red school over here on 7th Street.

Interviewer:
Right.

Silvio Bosi:
And Monsignor came to my mother one day and says, “I want these kids in a Catholic school.  You’re Catholic; I want them in a Catholic school tomorrow, Monday morning.”  This was on a Friday.  So my mother said, “I don’t have any money to send them to school, _____ _____, I don’t have to send them to school.”  He said, “Don’t worry about the money and don’t worry about the food.  We’ll feed them at the church and school and they’re just –“


So that Monday my mother had them over at the school down at St. Brigid right in front of where it used to be.  You know where, you know?

Interviewer:
Right.  We’ve just done Greenlawn.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, well, and so my mother had them in that school and they were raised at St. Brigid’s school, right in front of St. Joseph Hospital where the entrance face –
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– this way now, it used to face Jackson.  And she said, “I’ll pay you back some day.”


So when he remodeled that St. Brigid’s Church my mother sent him a check for remodeling all the years that she had owed him for the tuition, $12.00 a year.

Interviewer:
That’s remarkable.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.  She sent him every nickel she had – she kept up with it.  She paid him back.

Interviewer:
And so he left St. Brigid’s – 

Silvio Bosi:
And came out here _____ _____.

Interviewer:
And you knew him there well and – 

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
What kind of man was he?

Silvio Bosi:
He was a man that was strong.  In other words, he had every – not scared of him, but you respected him.  And in other words you were a little scared of him as a child, but as you got older you got to love him.  He got next to you.  He just knew how to handle people.  And he was rough, now.  He wouldn’t put up with no monkey business.

Interviewer:
But he was an effective _____.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, and he was –
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– a go-getter and he had a wonderful voice.  He’d rock that church on Sunday morning.

Interviewer:
Were you here when the dedication took place, Bishop Smith?

Silvio Bosi:
Bishop Smith and that was my boy Eddie was a little – 

Interviewer:
Acolyte.

Silvio Bosi:
– acolyte.  Well, he was a – he carried something to put in the church over there or something.  That was my second son.  My oldest boy was – 

Interviewer:
Was this kind of a neighborhood event or – 

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, they were blessing the church there.  And _____ _____ everything over at that time.

Interviewer:
Tell us a little bit about the group of Italians living in Memphis and what you all – did you get together?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
In this neighborhood.

Silvio Bosi:
Well, in this neighborhood we used to have what they called a Friendly Club.  And all the men, the boys, it was all – about 20 of us.  One of them had to grocery store down at – Felix Sampetrio had a store right down here on Jackson –
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– right there.  The building’s there but it’s – store but not in progress there.


And we would pay $1.00 a month to get together.  It was Sampetrio’s, Willy Donati –

Interviewer:
Could you spell some of the names?

Silvio Bosi:
Sampetrio, S-a-m-p-t-r-o-t-r-i-a, I think it is.  And Donati, D-o-n-a-t-i, that’s _____.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Silvio Bosi:
And oh, it was quite a – let me think of – 

Interviewer:
All these people were in the Friendly Club?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
And what would you all do?

Silvio Bosi:
We’d save our money up and have a dance about every three months.  We’d go out to the Silver Slipper or go to the College Inn or go to the – what’s the one used to be out there on Summer Avenue right there Market Basket is now?  It was Wishbones.

Interviewer:
Wishbones.

Interviewer:
On Summer?

[0:31:00]
Silvio Bosi:
You ever go there?

Interviewer:
No, I’ve heard about it.

Interviewer:
The College Inn is out by us.

Interviewer:
_____ _____.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, we went to _____ _____.

Interviewer:
And _____ _____.

Interviewer:
The Silver Slipper was wonderful.

Silvio Bosi:
Wasn’t that nice?  But the boy that used to wait on us, the colored boys, trade with me right today.  And you know what he used to say?  There’s one thing about us, he said, “Italians weren’t cheap.”  He always got a $25.00 tip every time we had a party.  He trades every now – 

Interviewer:
_____ _____ _____.

Silvio Bosi:
Old Maxwell trades with me now.  He’s with the – who is he with, _____?

Eugene Bosi:
The State of Tennessee.

Silvio Bosi:
State of Tennessee, he trades in here with me now.

Interviewer:
That’s good.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.  He says we, he says, “Those Italians, they weren’t cheap,” at that time it was hard times and we had a good time.

Interviewer:
Were there any neighborhood events that you were particularly – 

Silvio Bosi:
We used to have – well, there was – we used to have dances for the kids.  Monsignor Leffler used to have dancing for the kids up on the – up there, and my wife –
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– and I had handled that.  And we started off about 150, it got to bringing in bands, young bands there, and we’ve had as high as 500.  The firemen made us stop.

Interviewer:
Gosh.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, the neighborhood.  And so they had – we would charge them $0.25, $0.50 just to take care of the orchestra and _____ _____.

Interviewer:
Any particular anecdote or anything that comes to your mind that’s in the neighborhood?  Any story?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, I could tell you what happened over there – this is just something, it may not be a story, just something that happened when they had an election.  You want to hear that?

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Silvio Bosi:
Well, back in ’45, that’s when Crump was in power, a certain group came to –
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– me to have the rally over in the lot and I said, “No,” that, “you can have the lot but you can’t come off of my line.”  I said, “You come off that back telephone pole, because that light – I’m renting it but you can use it.”


And so the next time they came back to me again they said they didn’t want to come off the pole they want to come off there.  I said, “You not gonna come off my line, you’re coming off that pole or else you’re not gonna have it.”  I said, “I just don’t mix politics with my business,” you know?  I mean, I was that a way, I just – I wasn’t gonna do it for one I didn’t do it for the other.  That’s just the way I looked at it.  And if _____ _____ that was my business.


And what did you want to tell them about – there’s something else you wanted me to tell them –
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– about _____.

Eugene Bosi:
That was it.

Silvio Bosi:
Is that it?  Yeah, that was it.

Interviewer:
So there were no repercussions.  You just said no and – 

Silvio Bosi:
That’s right.  

Interviewer:
– “I’m not gonna do that,” and that was – 

Silvio Bosi:
No line – if they could use the line, because it was my line – it wasn’t mine, I rented it, but you could come of that back pole and use the light because I had told the other one I wouldn’t do it.  Because, see, they came off of that line and they did, they used it.  But Mr. Crump was the one I let have it and he come off the pole, but that’s because they came off of my line.

Interviewer:
Were there any civic clubs in the neighborhood then?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, yeah.

Interviewer:
What were they?

Silvio Bosi:
Vollintine’s Civic Club, and I was in that and they had – 

Interviewer:
What years did that exist?

Silvio Bosi:
That exists from ’40 – oh, for quite a while, for many years.  I forget how many years.

Interviewer:
What happened to it, do you think?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, the group – just people moving out, moving away, moving out, moving away from it.

Interviewer:
Old families moving _____.
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Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, moving out.

Interviewer:
Do you feel like the neighborhood’s pretty stable?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, it’s getting – I’ll tell you what’s happening.  You’ll get different things in every neighborhood, but I believe the _____ neighborhood that the colored – got about as nice a colored people that you could find, if you treat them right.  You know, you can knock a dog two or three times and he gonna come back and bite you.  You’ve got to treat people right.  You’ve got to give them what’s coming to them and let them get what’s coming to them and that’s the way I do.


If they don’t like that meat in that case they don’t have to take it.  I got a butcher back here to cut it.  If he gives them any lip I’ll find out why he gave them lip.

Interviewer:
Well, do you see the neighborhood; is it coming – or a little bit stronger now than it was?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, there’s a lot of them coming back, whites coming back, and a lot of good colored people coming.  You’ve got some fine ones in here.  I mean, I’m not saying that to be talking over there saying – I’m telling that’s a fact.

Interviewer:
Okay, good. 

[0:36:00]
Silvio Bosi:
And the ones that is causing a lot of things, even they don’t like them.  They’re scared, too.  But there’s a lot of them moving out.  I could see it, there’s a lot of good ones coming in, a lot more coming _____ _____.  You’ve got that _____ _____.

Interviewer:
And your business is doing well?

Silvio Bosi:
Doing good.  I’m not increasing a whole lot now because I don’t have the _____ but I’m holding my own.  I just – I have a steady business.  I don’t go up to 5,000 this week and back to 4 the next, or back to 2.  I just stay the average all the time.  My customers just stay with me.  I get – 

Interviewer:
_____ _____ compete with the supermarket and that’s _____ _____ neighborhood store.

Silvio Bosi:
I do, I stay on the _____ just like people tell me I’ve got the cheapest produce on town and I can tell.  I go to the market every morning.  I’m buying something – 

Interviewer:
Where do you go?  Scott Street?

Silvio Bosi:
Scott Street.  I go buy – see, since I moved out that a way five years ago I come in –
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– Summer Avenue and I go down out of there and I pick up my own stuff and it has saved me money because – 

Interviewer:
Because your life as a grocery man has not changed a lot.  You’re still giving individual attention.

Silvio Bosi:
That’s right.  I don’t change no way.  In other words, I used to – since I got older one thing that’s hurt me, I don’t remember names a whole lot.  When you get near 70 you kind of – 

Interviewer:
I understand.

Silvio Bosi:
– go a little bit back off again, you know?  But if I get in there to it, write it down two or three times, I see the check two or three times, I wont’ forget it.  But right off the pat I got to see you four or five times before I could keep it in my head.

Interviewer:
So you do cash checks here?

Silvio Bosi:
Cash checks, I take the checks.  If I – just like the – I’m really lucky and the last five or six years on checks, the only way we got stung on checks is if we –
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– know somebody, like you’d bring them in and I cash it for them, just like we had a guy come in here not long ago, give us an $86.00 check, but that check was verified by a guy with him, and the guy said he didn’t bring him in there but he did because he stood right by the checking stand and give it to me – to the checker, when I was standing there.  But we lost that money.


But we do, we take anybody – we go to the telephone sometimes, but if a young couple come up there that’s in the neighborhood and I can almost tell if it’s bad.  I can tell right away.

Interviewer:
Can you?

Silvio Bosi:
The way the stores are getting now papers and if they’re – and they’re all fumbling around or something, but we take them when they come in.  Sometimes we don’t even ask them.  We gamble on the $4.00 or $5.00 check, but we have – 


Now, I’ve got one right here, and I know it’s not bad because she’s been in here along but she’s just short of money right here for $27.29.  I meant to call her today but I just – this time of month –
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– we get them.

Interviewer:
Yeah, the end of the month.

Silvio Bosi:
End of the month.  But we haven’t lost – but that’s the only $86.00 check we ever lost in five years.

Interviewer:
You mentioned crime.  Now, have you been robbed in the last two years?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, I was robbed.  My daughter was with me, Debbie, she’s been gone about five years, _____ _____ went, what year, it’d be ’65?  Oh, yeah, ’65.  No, it’ll be ’75 – ’74, ’74, ’74.  It was on a Saturday afternoon, it was in September or October.  Tommy hadn’t got out of school; the boy had been with me about 7, 8 years.


And Debbie was checking and Rosemary was checking with me, and Rosemary was supposed to have been working that Saturday and Debbie had changed _____ because Rosemary – 
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– wanted to go to Knoxville to a football game.  And Debbie checked for her that day.

Interviewer:
Is that Rosemary?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, Rosemary Paham, she was my other checker.  It was a girl, she went – 

Interviewer:
How do you spell her last name?

Silvio Bosi:
P-a-h-a-m, Paham.  And Debbie was – my daughter Debbie checked for her.  I’m going back _____ because it’s really how lucky I was.  On the Saturday about 3:30, about 4:45, I left the checker stand and I saw this fellow come in, _____ _____, he stopped at the beer, hit the beer box, and he put six packages of _____ ale in the _____.  I said, “Boy, y’all really gonna have a big party.”  I said, “If you run out I got some more back here in the back.”


And he kept his head down like this.
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So I came back to the back here, I don’t know if I went in the ice box back there or went to the bathroom, I can’t remember what I did.  But I heard – I must have been back over here and I heard a holler, like a scream, and this – I can’t think _____ _____.

Interviewer:
_____ _____ _____?  How do you spell that?

Silvio Bosi:
T-u-m-u-i-l-l-o, Tumunillo or something.  She lived here on Evergreen, was walking up to the front and she heard Debbie holler and this fellow had the gun on her, says – and Debbie says, “It’s a hold up.”  And Debbie says, “Oh, man, you’re kidding.”  So he pulled out the pistol and he went around.  He said, “Put all the money in the sack.”  He grabbed the money on the other side and Debbie says, “No.”


He goes over there and there was some money in the register.  She didn’t know I’d put money in that morning in there.  And he got that –
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– and in the meantime he took her down this aisle and walked up here and the other one had my – Genie and the butcher tied up here.  We had 11 women in here all white, one black, 10 white and one black.


They made them all lay down on – one of them made them lay down over on the floor and the other one held a gun on Genie and Genie was here and Genie said, “You want me to jump over the counter?”  He was talking to his wife on the telephone, but he couldn’t say nothing.  He didn’t know it was a hold up until this guy done put a pistol out here.


He was talking to his wife on the telephone and he – this fellow said, “Put the telephone down.”  So he said, “You want me to put it down here or hang it up?”  He said, “Go over there and hang it up but don’t say nothing.”  And so she didn’t now it.  She was on the telephone.

Interviewer:
Oh, mercy.

Silvio Bosi:
But this fellow came up this aisle here with his arm around Debbie like this here, and when he did I came out that door and I hit that door like that.  I don’t know how I did it, and I walked right into the gun.
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And he says, “Where is your safe?”  I said, “I don’t have a safe.”  I said, “All my money’s up in front, all I ask you is don’t hurt nobody.”  I said – so when I went up that aisle there he just kept a punching me with the gun down my back, hitting me up here in the neck.  He knocked me out.  I had to go to the chiropractor after; he hit me so hard that he knocked me out.  I had to go this doctor over on Parker Street, that 2200 Parker and just _____ _____.  That was the name of _____ _____.

Interviewer:
_____ _____.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, _____ _____.  And he – I went up to the front and I just happened to have like – 40 checks was still there and I had a whole lot of quarters and I just kept a throwing them quarters in the sack and he just kept a cussing, cussing, cussing, that’s all he did was cuss.


He said, “Lay down on the – lay down on the floor.”  Then he says, “Lay this a way, no, lay that a way you so-and-so.”
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So I laid down and I had my son’s britches on, he gave me a pair of britches and they were tight and they couldn’t get my billfold out.  And I said, “Oh, dear Lord, let that black so-and-so get that thing out of my pocket.”


And he finally got it out and the other one made Debbie and them lay down on the front up there, in front of me.  I saw them laying down, and they went out.  And that – 

Interviewer:
He was alone?

Silvio Bosi:
No, there was two of them, had three of them in here.

Interviewer:
Three?

Silvio Bosi:
One was waiting down here on the corner down here in a car, and I actually believe they lived right down here on Beverly because they got away too fast.

Interviewer:
Never found them?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, they caught them at Lee and _____ Pawnshop over off Poplar Street, the guy let me have the money back to buy my house.  Can you imagine?

[0:45:00]
Interviewer:
What were they pawning?  Were they – 

Silvio Bosi:
They went in there to rob them.  They beat him up.  They hit him with a gun.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Interviewer:
After they left you they went over to – 

Silvio Bosi:
No, they caught them the next Saturday.

Interviewer:
They caught them the next Saturday.

Silvio Bosi:
The helicopter, remember the helicopter caught them over there on Popular?  That was the four they caught.

Interviewer:
Did you get any of your money back?

Silvio Bosi:
I lost $705.00 but I had – but the funny thing, my brother had the deposit in the safe.  He usually takes it home with him.  We had a safe but going back to it, I always told those girls that we don’t have a safe.  But Rosemary had just came to work for me, I didn’t tell her.  That’s the reason why I said to just show you how the good Lord was with us.  That Debbie – I had told Debbie but I hadn’t told Rosemary.

Interviewer:
And that’s the only time?

Silvio Bosi:
That’s the only time in my history, my business _____.

Interviewer:
Oh, _____.

Silvio Bosi:
And I – 

Interviewer:
When was that?

Silvio Bosi:
That was back in ’74.  And I used to be across the street over there from ’50 to ’60 –
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– staying open until 12:00, 1:00 or 2:00 or 3:00 in the morning, with the door wide open, wait on them and putting up stock.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Silvio Bosi:
That’s what really tears me up today.  Why we have to be so scared today.  I wonder what’s happened to people?

Interviewer:
That’s the big change in life.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, that’s the big change in life.

Interviewer:
Are you still living on Garland?

Silvio Bosi:
No, I’m on Graham, 997 Graham.  We bought an old home out there and my two daughters with us and the other one got married last month, and the other one married about a year or two ago.  And mother and I got a big home out there now, but we don’t stay there.

Interviewer:
Was your wife from – was her family from _____?  Was she – 

Silvio Bosi:
Naw, she lived at – right in front of St. Joseph Hospital.  Her aunt raised her, her mother died when she was 5 months old – I mean, 5 years old.  And she lived right in front of old St. Joseph’s Hospital, - 
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– door, right across the street where the _____ store was down there.  You remember _____ down there?

Interviewer:
I’ve heard of it.

Silvio Bosi:
Right on the corner.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Silvio Bosi:
Well, she lived the second house from there.

Interviewer:
And what was her name?

Silvio Bosi:
Magdalene Fuchs. 

Interviewer:
How do you spell that?

Silvio Bosi:
F-u-c-h-s, Magdalene.

Interviewer:
And you all have how many children?

Silvio Bosi:
We have three boys and two girls, the boys were first, and the girls were last.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Fine, anything else now that comes to mind?

Interviewer:
Thank you, we might hear a little bit more about neighborhood things, for instance, your place in the neighborhood now.  Are you still involved with any of the organizations or any – 

Silvio Bosi:
Well, yeah, I was just telling the girl – the lady up there in the newspaper, I tell you what she did.  It kind of – at first when they came out with it they kind of hurt me because they wrote about everybody and I was – been on the corner longer than anybody and I – they came in at the end and – 
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– I told them, “Well, hell, I’ve been here 40 years.”  I didn’t mean to say it that a way but it just – they should have came to me first.  And not to be important but, I mean, knowing – 

Interviewer:
But you’ve just been here so long.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
That’s why we’re starting out with you and really – 

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, yeah, and – but I go and schools I give to all of them, all the neighborhood schools.  I limit myself to $15.00 to all of them.  Snowden, Northside, Vollintine, Sacred Heart, all of them.  I don’t give no more to that than to any of them, Callick High, CBC, they all the same.  I don’t try to give any more anywhere else because if I start with $15.00 that’s what I give to – 

Interviewer:
So you have – are there any more of your relatives who have come to this – to Memphis from Italy?

Silvio Bosi:
My mother – 
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– had three brothers and a sister, Mrs. Rajonti and her married name was Rajonti and Lucchesi’s and – 

Interviewer:
And they’re all relatives of yours?

Silvio Bosi:
All relatives.  You know Johnny Lucchesi, you know the Lucchesi’s, right?  That big family, that’s a big family.

Interviewer:
And they’ve all settled in Memphis?

Silvio Bosi:
They all settled in Memphis.

Interviewer:
And how many are in this neighborhood, about?  Many in the neighborhood?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, they all used to live here.

Interviewer:
I lived here?

Silvio Bosi:
All of them used to be right in here.

Interviewer:
Why did they choose this neighborhood do you think?

Silvio Bosi:
Well, I tell you, this used to be a very high class, big neighborhood, with money.  It’s still money out there.

Interviewer:
Oh, sure.

Silvio Bosi:
A lot of it, but it used to be it was just – it was just a nice – it was just a good neighborhood.  That’s the only thing I can say.

Interviewer:
What do you think made it a good neighborhood?

Silvio Bosi:
People that were friendly – 
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– and on our street we used to go up and down the street, meet one another, and I was the type I worked all the time.  If I took off – I used to take a few drinks and I – but we had one across the street, we had a _____ street, you know, had a little high ball, we’d set out in the yard in 1947, ’48 and ’49, sit in the yard, have a drink at night, a beer, and we had a man next door, he was a narcotic man, a man named Dave Houk, he was a narcotic agent.  He used to stop find these marijuana and things growing around the town.  He lived next door to me for about 25 years.


And he got sick and he used to stay in bed.  I’d go over there and get him out of bed, say, “Come on Dave, come over and get over at the house, let’s have a high ball or something.”  He’d stay in bed all day.  He just got to where he wouldn’t get out.  The only way he’d get out I’d go get him and make him come over to the house.  For 10 years I did that.  He’d get in bed and just stay there.
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And we had one of the finest streets in town.

Interviewer:
Where was your house on Garland?

Silvio Bosi:
840.  I stayed there 29 years.

Interviewer:
And you moved out when?

Silvio Bosi:
In – it’s been five years ago, since ’74.  Moved in ’74 and the only reason why we actually moved – my wife always wanted to go to the country, and I told her, “I’m not gonna go and drive all day long to get home and all day long to get back to my place of business.”  I said I wasn’t gonna do it.


So we had a friend that lived out – Person, Vince Person, has a – you ought to make him, he’s out at Chelsea Extended, he’s been there for as long as a – not as long as – 

Interviewer:
Vince Person?

Silvio Bosi:
Vince Person.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Silvio Bosi:
And he’s another one out there, he’s – and they found this home, the lady was 91 years old when she died and _____ _____.  It was – 
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– awful.  But she kept a nice home, clean home, and the walls were busted and all that upstairs, we got – and the two daughters and my wife went in there and redid that whole house their self.  And my daughter’s doing one now in Cleveland at Carr.  And if you’re over that way on a Sunday, I want you to go by and see what my daughter’s done to that place.

Interviewer:
And what is your daughter’s name?

Silvio Bosi:
Sylvia.

Interviewer:
Sylvia?

Silvio Bosi:
Sylvia Creedon right now.

Interviewer:
What?

Silvio Bosi:
Sylvia Creedon, C-r-e-e-d-e-n, Creedon.

Interviewer:
And she’s restoring that house?

Silvio Bosi:
At the corner of Carr and Cleveland.

Interviewer:
The east?  The west?

Eugene Bosi:
The left.

Interviewer:
Southwest?

Silvio Bosi:
Southeast.

Interviewer:
Southeast? 

Silvio Bosi:
It’s right on the corner.  She has – they’ve tore out five apartments out of that house, her and her husband.

Interviewer:
That’s what –
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– we like, preservation.
Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, I wish she’d – just tell her that you were here talking to me and go by and just look at it, there’s a little of it right now, and she’ll show you a picture of some of it that was there.

Interviewer:
You have any old pictures?  Any old pictures of the store like this one?

Silvio Bosi:
Oh, I’m tearing up your picture.  I’m sorry.

Interviewer:
That’s all right, we can – but do you have any other pictures like this?

Silvio Bosi:
I’ve got some at home.

Interviewer:
Do you?

Silvio Bosi:
Some of my Daddy.  Now that’s my Daddy and Mother right here.  That’s my mother and that’s – now this is another _____ _____ had the store over on Vollintine.  She – her son owns it with my brother-in-law.  That was me, that’s Jack, that’s Joe, he was _____ and that’s Dolly.  She’s over there.

Interviewer:
Would you be able to find any pictures for us?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
That we could reproduce?

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, I will, I’ve got some at home.  Now, what do you want, the store?  Now, I’ve got one – 

Interviewer:
– about your life.  What time do you start out in the morning?

Silvio Bosi:
I leave the house between 5:30 and 6:00, 6:30.
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I go to the market; I open up between 7:00 and 7:30.  I stay here until 7:00, sometimes 8:00.  If I have problems I stay until 10:00.  I’ve been doing it all my life.

Interviewer:
All your life.

Silvio Bosi:
Um-hum.  I have Thursday’s off sometimes.  I hope I get off tomorrow.

Interviewer:
I think you should.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, I hope I get off tomorrow.

Interviewer:
– some other people who have been in the neighborhood a long time that we might talk to?

Silvio Bosi:
Why don’t you go over there and talk to my sister over there on Vollintine.  Would that be too close?

Interviewer:
Who is your sister?

Silvio Bosi:
Dolly Pierantoni.

Interviewer:
Oh, yeah, we did want to.  I was talking about – 

Eugene Bosi:
Mustard or mayonnaise?

Interviewer:
– I should definitely _____ _____.

Silvio Bosi:
What do y’all like on your sandwiches?

Eugene Bosi:
Mustard or mayonnaise?

Interviewer:
Mayonnaise.

Silvio Bosi:
And I got a – 

Interviewer:
And mustard.  Oh, no, no.

Interviewer:
We really – you’re so nice.

Silvio Bosi:
Yeah, wrap them up where they can take them home with them.

Interviewer:
We just ate before we came in.
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Interviewer:
Boy, if I had known.

Interviewer:
We would have waited until we got here.

Silvio Bosi:
Why don’t you go talk to Miss Cooley?

Interviewer:
Cooley?

Silvio Bosi:
What do you think about Cooley?  Huh?

Eugene Bosi:
She _____ _____.

Silvio Bosi:
Or Miss Adams?

Interviewer:
Miss who?

Silvio Bosi:
I’ll tell you, you can – Miss Summers, or – they’ve been here a long time.

Interviewer:
Miss who Summers?

Silvio Bosi:
Summers, that’s her last name, what’s her first name? 

Interviewer:
Where does she live?

Silvio Bosi:
Right here on Crump.

Interviewer:
Summers, okay.

Silvio Bosi:
The last house here on Crump right before you get to the church.

Interviewer:
All right.

Silvio Bosi:
– to Hawthorne.

Interviewer:
That’s Mrs. who Cooley?

Silvio Bosi:
Cooley, she’s been there what – Cooley, she’s been here for years.  She was a – she’ll tell you a lot.

Interviewer:
Good.

Silvio Bosi:
I mean, she’s been in all the organizations, she knows more than I do.

Interviewer:
Wait, Miss Jacobs?

Eugene Bosi:
Yes, R.E. Jacobs.

Interviewer:
Had a candy store.

Eugene Bosi:
Which street does she live on?

Silvio Bosi:
I’ll have to look them up.
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Oh, Cooley is 862 Hawthorne, I know it.

Interviewer:
– speaking to Eugene Bosi who is the third child – no, the third son of – 

Eugene Bosi:
Silvio.

Interviewer:
– five children.

Eugene Bosi:
Right.  

Interviewer:
You have two younger sisters. 

Eugene Bosi:
Right.

Interviewer:
You’re the middle one.

Eugene Bosi:
Exactly.

Interviewer:
But the only one that is working in the business.

Eugene Bosi:
Right.  And I have two little girls and hoping this next one will be a little boy so we can keep it going.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Keep it in the family.

Eugene Bosi:
Right.

Interviewer:
Do you live near here?

Eugene Bosi:
No, I live on Quince and Park; it’s the Colonial Acres area.

Interviewer:
Yeah, um-hum.

Eugene Bosi:
And we thought about moving here around the store but all her sisters, she’s got three sisters live right in that same area and we figured for babysitters and everything I’d probably be better moving out there.  So that’s what we did.

Interviewer:
Do your children go to Holy Rosary?

Eugene Bosi:
Right.  And I don’t know, what y’all want to – 
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Interviewer:
You’ve grown up in the grocery business?

Eugene Bosi:
Right.

Interviewer:
And have you made some changes in the store?  It looks like you all – I see you’ve got a nice computer sort of –

Eugene Bosi:
Right.

Interviewer:
So you have made some.

Eugene Bosi:
Some changes, modernizing a little bit.  We don’t want to take away the old family atmosphere here but I don’t believe that will.  It’s just – it got to where stuff got so high you had to multiple all your scales.  We had to multiple times three to get the price you wanted.  And this – 

Interviewer:
Oh, that’s right.

Eugene Bosi:
– goes up to – this’ll go up to $99.00 which we hope we won’t ever have to use it.

Interviewer:
Oh, my goodness.  That’s a depressing thought.

Eugene Bosi:
Isn’t that the truth?

Interviewer:
Now you grew up in this neighborhood.  Did you go to Little Flower?

Eugene Bosi:
Right, and let’s see – 

Interviewer:
You _____ _____ _____.

Eugene Bosi:
– grew up on Garland, I think Daddy told you.

Interviewer:
How old are you now? 

Eugene Bosi:
I’m 32.

Interviewer:
You’re 32.

Eugene Bosi:
Um-hum, and let’s –
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– see, just – there’s places in Memphis I’ve never been, you know?  I’ve just grown up in north Memphis, that’s probably the only area I really know well.

Interviewer:
We just have an identity to you, this is – 

Eugene Bosi:
Right, this is just – this is home really.  I lived in Florida for about a year and I can’t say – I used to think I’d never leave Memphis but I found there’s a few other places I’d like to go.  I don’t know if I’d rather stay there but Memphis is a fine city.  It’s just I think we’re behind the times kind of like the store.  I think Daddy’s had a lot of setbacks though.  I think we’d been a lot bigger, I don’t know if it’d been better or worse, but it’s just losing leases and I don’t know if he told you about those.


But I can remember when the biggest store was about our size, you know?  And the grocery business really come on in the last – 
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– I’d say in the last 30 years at the most.

Interviewer:
Well, now I see you’re a _____ number 17.

Eugene Bosi:
Right.

Interviewer:
All right, what does that mean?

Eugene Bosi:
That was a chain of stores.  We own the Buy Rights.  We’re here in town, and it was kind of like your Liberty Cash and they were a corner grocery stores and at one time I think Daddy said there was a – it was 70 or 80 of them, corner grocery stores that were supplied by this SC Tooth and Company now, it’s in the building where this food chain was.  If y’all live in Memphis y’all heard of one of the other, I’m sure.


And they – I think it was through mismanagement they just – they just folded.  And – 

Interviewer:
Were they just suppliers really for the small grocery, independent owned?

Eugene Bosi:
Right, independent groceries.

Interviewer:
I see.

Eugene Bosi:
And some of them were owned by some of the top executives there at the warehouse.  They – some top executives owned, I guess jointly – 
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– four or five of the _____ or Buy Rights.

Interviewer:
So now are you affiliated with any grocery chain?

Eugene Bosi:
Yes, it’s – they – Affiliated Foods out of Little Rock took over a lot of their accounts when they first left.  See, they’d come over and supply us and they’ve got a real good – it’s – I don’t know, it’s a real good savings plan or whatever, it’s more than I’ve seen any of the others offer here in town.  And they – most of them are just out to sell your groceries and you pay them, but they more or less have a Credit Union and – which some of the others do but not – it’s other things that they help you with.


And – 

Interviewer:
So you feel like there’s still a place for a neighborhood grocery store?

Eugene Bosi:
Oh, definitely.  It’ll always be – everybody’s thinking of gasoline, but I think more people will start coming to the neighborhood grocery stores and a lot more people will start walking – 

[1:01:00]


– for the exercise and say, you know, “I can kill two birds, exercise, get my groceries, save gas, do whatever.”  And – 

Interviewer:
You may be very much in vogue in the next 10 years.

Eugene Bosi:
I know.  But like I was gonna say, I think – I like the grocery business and everything, you know, you’re young you think everybody looks greener on the other side, but I think I see so many things that can be done in the grocery business just in – I say grocery stores, you can run a small one just as well as you can run a big one.  There’s no difference, just in more volume and maybe have to, you know, put up with a few extra things. 


But – and I see the grocery business going a long way from what it is now.  It started with _____ _____ self-service in this century.  So you can imagine everything used to be behind counters and you had to get it for them kind of like you see on the old western stores, they went and got your flour and packed it all up.  So you’re figuring since –
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– I guess the mid-teens when he changed it to self-service, and they told him he’d go broke because they’d steal everything.  That’s why they kept everything behind the counters was so people wouldn’t pilferage.

Interviewer:
Of course, now you can do it by computer like Service Merchandise.

Eugene Bosi:
Right, there’s a place in Houston that you can – the women come in, they give them their list – 
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